L -

SINOREF

EMZERBERLT
SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RAESEBZMA L 2ERLE])
Stock Code &7 fX5%: 1020

Annual Report
2012 F &




Corporate Information 2
Chairman’s Statement 4
Management Discussion and Analysis 6

Corporate Governance Report 14

Directors and Senior Management 27

Report of the Directors 33

Independent Auditor’s Report 50

Consolidated Statement of 53
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of 54
Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of 55
Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of 57
Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated 58

Financial Statements
Summary of Results, 112
Assets and Liabilities

Contents

LFEH
EREBESE
EREMRRS R
ERERRE
EEREREEE
EEEHE

95 30 1% By B 46
FeE2EKaR

REMBkRE

REERERR

REHeRER

REMBERRME

iR HERAREE

B &

2
4
6
14
27
33
50
53

54
55
57
58

112

Annual Report 2012 —Z—_FF3f

1



Corporate Information

—H\N T 3 —

—

e
e _‘———.____ _\_""‘--..._\_\_\_\_\_
,-r"'df-:;’f —

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Xu Yejun

Dr. Zhang Lanyin
Mr. Gu Aoxing

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Gao Zhilong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Enshu
Mr. Yang Fugiang
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tam Chi Ming George

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Dr. Zhang Lanyin
Mr. Tam Chi Ming George

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Yao Enshu
Mr. Yang Fuqgiang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Yejun

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve
Mr. Yang Fugiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman)
Mr. Yao Enshu

Mr. Yang Fugiang

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

'S'inor-e-f Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

BTEE

BEBLE
RMREL
ERITRE
FMITES
BEREE
BIUFNTES
bk Bk S
BEREE
‘BB E
LRWE
MERLE
BiEA=

REIRE LT
ESEE

ERERE

RABESEE (£E)
kRS S
BERTE

FHERE

BB EE (£/E)
RERLL
fRAAE R E
HERELE

REERE
BEESEE (ZF)
kB e
BEsR A
BARE S E

R 3 2R 2

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands




HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

East Qingyuan Ave.
Yixing EDZ, Jiangsu
China 214200

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 2007, Tower 1, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
LEGAL ADVISOR
Chiu & Partners
PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of Communications
COMPANY WEBSITE
www.sinoref.com.hk

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 1020

Ml

Corporate Information

NAER

RNEERPEEFEERNE

BT #E
B A ER R
BRAER
HR214200

EEETESXRINE
BE

& $EIE895%
HEFNH1EE2007E

FEEERNEFREIARE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

FEEKNERBILSE

BEFRHFERERAA
BE

i

EERER28%

S EEF 261

74 {0

=g o BAEMRT SRTANTT
ERERN

AT S B oR R A A A
EEERBIT
RMIRTT

NIE S
www.sinoref.com.hk

B {7 £

EBBZAT 1 1020

Annual Report 2012 —B——F & 3



4

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present on behalf of the Board (“Board”) of
Directors (“Directors”) of Sinoref Holdings Limited (“Sinoref” or
the “Group”) its annual report for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Since its listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, Sinoref has maintained steady growth
despite of the industry downturn in the past two years. This is
attributable to our proven successful strategy, which is to grow
through increasing production capacity, strengthening research
and development, and expanding customer base.

In 2012, against the backdrop of global economic uncertainty
and the sluggish domestic economic growth, the iron and steel
industry experienced overcapacity, excess inventory and inflated
iron ore prices. Many steel manufacturers in the PRC were still
suffering from making losses on their financial statements. In
spite of the challenging market condition, the management
strove hard to expand the Group’s business. For the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group’s turnover was approximately
RMB323 million. Its total sales volume exceeded 10,000 tonnes,
and the domestic customer base reached 27 in 2012. With the
completion of the second production line in the fourth quarter of
2011, the management is confident the increase in production
capacity will keep the Group well positioned to tap into future
market opportunities.

One of the core values of Sinoref is its strong research and
development capability, which has clearly differentiated the
Group from many other players in the industry. In 2012, Sinoref
has obtained 6 new patents, increasing its total number of
patents to 13. The application of advanced technology helps
Sinoref be named “Enterprise in High and New Technology”,
thus enables the Group’s subsidiary to enjoy a preferential tax
rate of 15% granted by the PRC government, which effectively
enhances its profitability.
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Looking ahead, we believe growth in GDP in the PRC and the
increasing numbers of demand for infrastructure projects, have
set a favourable condition for the steel industry and hence
the advanced steel flow control products sector industry.
Meanwhile, the management envisages the demand for
advanced steel flow control products would continue to grow
under the favourable context in the current 12th Five-Year Plan
and is ready to prudently implement comprehensive strategies
to secure business opportunities in the future so as to maximise
Sinoref’s profit and bring fruitful returns for shareholders.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere appreciation to our dedicated staff, as well as to our
shareholders and business partners for their continued support
and trust.

Xu Yejun
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRED

MARKET REVIEW

The European debt crisis has been lingering since the
beginning of 2012 and, coupled with the rising concern of
the US fiscal cliff in the second half of 2012, contributed to a
bumpy global economic recovery. Worries about the ability of
European policymakers to manage the Eurozone crisis and US
policymakers to agree on a fiscal plan surely played important
roles. All of these factors, coupled with the pronounced
slowdown of China’s domestic economic growth, the sluggish
iron and steel industry has exerted significant impact on the
trend of the iron and steel market. At the same time, the
sustained deterioration of the market condition, overcapacity,
excess inventory and the inflation of iron ore prices have
brought enormous pressure and challenges for the production
and operations of steel manufacturers.

Notwithstanding the considerable uncertainties about the global
economy and the prospects of the domestic iron and steel
industry, China’s crude steel output volume in 2012 slightly
increased by approximately 3.1% year-on-year to approximately
716.5 million tonnes according to the World Steel Association.
Favourable government policies appear to have fuelled this
growth momentum. China’s 12th Five-Year Plan (5YP) is the
main contributor to this increase. Green low-carbon smelting,
comprehensive utilisation of resources and independent
innovation are key themes of the current 5YP. Manufacturing
plants not attaining required improvements are eliminated or
forced to upgrade their existing facilities in order to comply
with the more stringent emission reduction policy. In addition,
newly built manufacturing plants are targeting at the high-end
market with greater emission reduction capabilities. The result
is a growing demand for advanced steel flow control products.
The core competencies of the Group allow it to accommodate
the specific needs of its market. The outstanding research
and development achievements of the Group have attained
numerous patents and entitled the Group to the Chinese
High-tech Enterprise tax relief. The management remains
steadfast in its development strategy for its advanced steel
flow control products to better capture the blooming business
opportunities driven by government policy while helping to
promote a greener China in the future.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Expanded Production Capacity

As the second production line commenced its commercial
production in the fourth quarter of 2011, together with the
production capacity of the first production line, the annual
production capacity of the Group’s has been more than doubled
to approximately 16,800 tonnes. During the year ended 31
December 2012, the Group’s sales volume continued to grow
and the utilisation rates of the first and second production lines
were 100% and approximately 20% respectively. The increase
in the utilisation rate was driven by the rapid expansion of our
customer base in both domestic and overseas markets, which
led to the gradual increase in the Group’s output volume in
2012.

Broadened Customer Base in Domestic Market

As a result of the Group’s top-notch advanced steel flow
control products and prominent reputation in the industry,
the Group received an encouraging result in expanding and
further cementing our customer base. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group had secured new customers
including top 2012 500 Chinese enterprises — namely Panggang
Group Company Limited (&£ EHFR2AF]), Liuzhou Iron &
Steel Company Limited (#0013 & J% 7 B BR 2 7)) and Benxi
Beiying Iron & Steel (Group) Company Limited (4Zdk % i
(£E) B ABRAA). Including the new additions, the Group’s
total number of customers has reached 27. This comprise nine
of the top 10 steel manufacturers in the PRC, including Baosteel
Group, Shougang Group, Hebei Steel Group and Wuhan Steel
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
generated approximately RMB22.7 million in revenue from the
new customers, representing 7.1% of the total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRED

Expanded Overseas Market

The management of the Group understands the importance of
diversifying its customer base especially under nowadays volatile
market condition. As such, it has devoted considerable effort
to expand the overseas market and has achieved remarkable
results. The Group’s overseas customers include the world’s
largest steel and mining company, ArcelorMittal, the world’s
largest manufacturer, processor and distributor of special long
steel products, Deutsche Edelstahlwerke GmbH and the largest
steel producer in Russia, Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works. As a
result, including both its domestic and overseas customers, the
Group has established business partnerships with five of the top
10 steel manufacturers in the world. During the year, the Group
generated approximately RMB13.3 million in revenue from
overseas customers, an increase of approximately 432% as
compared with RMB2.5 million for the previous year. The Group
intends to adhere to its business strategies to continuously
expand its overseas network in order to increase its brand
awareness globally and strengthen its leading position in the
industry.

Enhanced Research and Development

The management of the Group strive to uphold and enhance
its core competency technology. To further cement the Group’s
market leading position, its research and development team
has continuously devoted time and effort to collaborate with
the leading research institutions and universities to develop
its own proprietary advanced steel flow products with unique
technologies. During the period under review, the Group
attained five new utility patents namely Carbonless-liner Ladle
Shroud (—#&in-situfEfix WAE KK O), Steel-plated Shell for Ladle
Shroud (—#&#i]® &K/K O A7), Embedded Porcelain Nut for
Stoppers used in Continuous Casting of Steel (58 §F A&
BERPAEE ARE), Anti-steel Flow Leakage Upper Nozzle
Steel Shell (f587k2 7% _E/KO$H%%) and Anti-steel Flow Leakage
Tundish Upper Nozzle (F5i#il7K2F+ M _EKH) and one new
registered invention patent namely Subentry Nozzle for Thin
Slab Casting Process (B#R#EE A KA). As at 31 December
2012, the Group had a total of 13 registered patents. Not only
have the proprietary advanced steel flow products allowed the
Group to enjoy the preferential tax rate, but its state-of-the-art
products have also pushed the Group’s sales volume to new
heights.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s revenue
decreased slightly to approximately RMB322.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.2% as compared
with approximately RMB323.4 million for the previous year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in average
selling price, notwithstanding the rising sales volume. Total sales
volume increased by approximately 17.4% to approximately
10,100 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2012. Such
growth was a combined effect of (i) securing 3 new customers
in the PRC who have collectively purchased approximately
730 tonnes from the Group during the reviewing period and
contributed approximately RMB22.7 million or 7.1% to the
Group’s total revenue in 2012; and (i) securing new overseas
end-use customers who have made combined purchases with
existing overseas end-use customers totaling approximately
RMB183.3 million or 4.1% of the Group’s total revenue in 2012.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprised costs of raw

materials, labour, depreciation and other direct costs of
sales. During the year, the Group’s cost of sales increased
by approximately 18.9% from RMB142.7 million in 2011 to
approximately RMB169.7 million in 2012. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in sales volume, costs of raw

materials and depreciation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRED

Gross Profit & Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately 15.4%
from approximately RMB180.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to approximately RMB153.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The Group’s gross profit margin also
decreased from approximately 55.9% for the year ended 31
December 2011 to approximately 47.4% for the year ended 31
December 2012. The decrease in the Group’s gross profit and
gross profit margin were mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
costs of raw materials by approximately 13.8%; (i) the decrease
in average selling price; and (iii) the depreciation of the second
production line which commenced operation in the fourth
quarter of 2011.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs comprised sales
commission, sales staff costs and transportation costs.
During the year under review, our selling and distribution
costs increased slightly to approximately RMB29.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 4.2% from
approximately RMB28.3 million for the previous year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in transportation
costs due to the increased sales volume.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by
approximately 20.6% from approximately RMB39.3 million for
year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately RMB31.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease of the amortisation of
non-cash expenses associated with the share options
from approximately RMB18.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to approximately RMB12.2 million in 2012,
notwithstanding the increase in staff costs of approximately
14.8% from approximately RMB6.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 to approximately RMB7.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Taxation

During the period under review, the Group’s PRC subsidiary
has successfully applied for the Chinese High-tech Enterprise
Certification (FFEIRFTH TR E). As a result, the Group’s
PRC subsidiary was subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT”) rate of 15% for the period under review and the same
rate will apply in the next 2 years.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the
year decreased by approximately 21.2% to approximately
RMB72.5 million from approximately RMB92.0 million for the
previous year. The Group’s net profit margin also decreased
accordingly from approximately 28.4% for the previous year
to approximately 22.5% in the current year. The decrease was
mainly due to a combination of factors, which include (i) the
decrease in average selling price; (i) the increase in costs of
sales by approximately 18.9% from approximately RMB142.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately
RMB169.7 million in 2012, driven by the increase in raw
material costs; (iii) the decrease in administration expenses
mainly attributable to the amortisation of non-cash expenses of
approximately RMB12.2 million associated with share options
granted to management and staff; and (iv) the adjustment of
the PRC EIT rate subject to the group to 15% as a result of
the approval of the preferential tax rate for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Group’s earnings per share decreased by
approximately 21.3% from RMB7.67 cents for the year ended
31 December 2011 to RMB6.04 cents in 2012.

Final Dividends
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK1 cent (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.81 cent) per share).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRED

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s net cash
from operating activities was approximately RMB77.7 million
(2011: RMB88.0 million) and the Group’s bank balances and
cash was approximately RMB369.8 million (2011: RMB305.6
million).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately RMB619.7 million (2011: RMB544.8 million).
The Group does not have any outstanding bank loan as at 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any pledge of
assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had not provided any form
of guarantee for any company outside the Group. The Group
is not involved in any current material legal proceedings, nor
is our Group aware of any pending or potential material legal
proceedings involving the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 243 staff members
employed in mainland China and Hong Kong (2011: 223). Total
staff costs for the year were approximately RMB49.0 million
(2011: RMB53.0 million). During the year, the Group continued
to reinforce the training provided to its staff by providing training
and study opportunities for management staff and professional
technicians. In addition, the Group has provided timely update
to all staff with the latest government policies of the industry
to continuously enhance the professional standard and quality
of the staff. Meanwhile, the Group has provided competitive
remuneration for the staff which encourages them to commit
themselves and serve customers whole-heartedly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Waves of regional unrest, the slow pace of global economic
recovery due to the Eurozone crisis and averting the US fiscal
cliff have made 2012 the gloomiest year for the iron and steel
industry in recent times. Overcapacity, excess inventory and
the inflation of iron ore prices are still the main obstacles to the
progressive growth of domestic steel manufacturers. However,
the surplus capacity was alleviated in the fourth quarter of
2012 which helped ease the adverse condition of the steel
manufacturers. According to the recent forecast by the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences, China’s GDP annual growth rate is
expected to increase to 8.4% in 2013 from 7.8% in the previous
year. The successful structural transformation of China’s
economy into a domestic demand driven model has gradually
uplifted steel consumption in the machinery, car manufacturing
and electrical appliances industries. Coupled with the ongoing
rapid urbanisation and the increasing need of upgrading
infrastructure in the PRC, the management anticipates a gradual
domestic economic upturn of growth in 2013.

At the same time, in response to the rising public awareness
of air pollution in China, the elimination of outdated production
facilities and an upgrade of emission reduction equipment are
progressively moving forward. While research and development
capability remains as the Group’s core competence, it continues
to be enhanced through collaborating with well-known
universities and research institutions in enriching the Group’s
product range. This initiative goes beyond being a proactive
market move to contributing to the policy in promoting a
greener China.

The management of the Group understands the diversification of
its customer base reduces the dependence on a single market.
The marketing team is utilising its strength in the domestic
market to solicit more customers in China as well as in overseas
markets particularly Europe, Korea, Taiwan and North America.

While 2012 has been a very tough year for the iron and steel
industry, the Group has leveraged its competitive edge and has
successfully achieved encouraging results despite the adverse
market conditions. Motivated by this modest success in 2012,
the management stands firm on its development strategies
for advanced steel flow control products and is more strongly
resolved to overcome the challenges in the coming years.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Sinoref
Holdings Limited (“Company”) hereby presents this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former Code”), which was
revised and renamed as the Corporate Governance Code
(“Revised Code”) on 1 April 2012, contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
The Board considers such commitment is essential for the
growth of the Group and for maximising the interest of the
shareholders (“Shareholders”) of the Company. The Company
regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that the latest development in corporate governance can be
followed and observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year under review, the Company had
complied with all the Code Provisions of the former Code for
the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and of the
revised Code for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012, except for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1
which are explained below.

According to Code Provision A.2.1 under both of the Former
Code and the Revised Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Xu Yejun, in addition to his duties as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for the strategic planning and
overseeing all aspects of the Group’s operations as the chief
executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation
from Code Provision A.2.1. Mr. Xu Yejun as one of the founders
of the Group has extensive experience and knowledge in the
core business of the Group and his duties for overseeing the
Group’s operations is clearly beneficial to the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and_authority between the Board and the management of the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted on 7 June 2010 its securities dealing
code (“Code”) regarding the dealings of securities of the
Company by the Directors and senior management of the
Group, on terms no less exacting than the required standard
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all the Directors and
senior management of the Group have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code and Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s overall strategic
policies. The management is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of three executive Directors
namely Mr. Xu Yejun as the chairman, Dr. Zhang Lanyin and
Mr. Gu Aoxing; one non-executive Director, Mr. Gao Zhilong;
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yao
Enshu, Mr. Yang Fugiang and Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out under “Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 27 to 31 of this annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association
of the Company, each of Dr. Zhang Lanyin, Mr. Tsui Siu Hang,
Steve and Mr. Yao Enshu will retire as Directors by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at
the annual general meeting of the Company. The non-executive
Director was appointed for a specific term of three years.

EEERRE

BHXHZHETH

RZE—ZTFSALtARESEER
BREEEBETARRACESFRFHRE
—EBHZSFAASFA)) - RESK
ZIRAENER £ AR R SR 0FT 8k - g
TABEFETELFR HHIFESTH

ZAN/N|
e ]
0

RARRAMEESERARESREEE
ERELERR  MEEERAKE SR
EEECER REBE_FT-—-F1+-8
=t HUEMRFEEREERAEES

RERBETESFRZETTRIAEAR
ERER EMRAMEI0ZHTE

EFE

EZAEARARIMNEE RIEGHIE - WEE
RALENBERBEMER - EEERT
EESZAMBEORER  BUBEASE
°

EXeHRRPEE-ZRTES  IRE
BERE(ER) RHRELIRBERTE
£ —EZERTEESERLE K=F
BUIEMITES BB HTLE  BEA
EERBBERE BREZBEFBEHD
AAREE-ZT——F+=-A=1+—HI
FEZFRF2IENB[EZREHERE
&) —&f -

REBEARRAFABMBIZAMAE105A)E - K
BIRE LT RAERERKRIELEERR
ARARRBFRE LWMERT  ERE
BERIMEEESET - FRTESTERE
MEBFHR=F-

Annual Report 2012 —Z—_FF3if

15



16

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

The Board meets regularly to review and determine the
corporate strategies and overall strategic policies. Each of the
members of the Board has full access to relevant information
at the meetings. During the financial year ended 31 December
2012, the Board has convened 4 regular meetings at which,
among other things, the following activities were conducted at
such regular meetings:

(1) approved the interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2012;

(2) approved the annual results and annual report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 and matters to be
considered at the annual general meeting of the Company;

(3) reviewed and approved corporate strategies of the Group
for the financial year ending 31 December 2013; and

(4) reviewed the performance and financial position of the
Group.

The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies and performing corporate
governance duties set out under the Revised Code. lts
(i) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance duties include, among others,
corporate governance; (i) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal or regulatory
requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter
was required.

Details of the Directors’ attendance records at the board
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2012
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman) 4/4
Dr. Zhang Lanyin 4/4
Mr. Gu Aoxing 4/4
Non-executive Director
Mr. Gao Zhilong 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu 4/4
Mr. Yang Fugiang 4/4
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 4/4

Whilst the Board as a whole is to determine the corporate
strategies and overall strategy policies, the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company, as delegated by
the Board, are responsible for implementing the determined
strategies and policies and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

Details of the Directors’ attendance records at the general
meetings of the Company during the financial year ended 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Zhang Lanyin 11
Mr. Gu Aoxing 1/1
Non-executive Director
Mr. Gao Zhilong 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu 1/1
Mr. Yang Fugiang 1/1
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 1/1

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report of the Company,
there is no other relationship (whether financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) among the members of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Revised Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The Company shall be responsible for
arranging suitable training for all Directors at the Company’s
expense.

During the financial year under review, the Company
has organised a training session conducted by qualified
professionals on the amendments to the Listing Rules relating to
the Revised Code and associated Listing Rules, so as to ensure
that they fully understood their roles, functions and duties
under the Listing Rules. Mr. Xu Yejun, Dr. Zhang Lanyin, Mr. Gu
Aoxing, Mr. Gao Zhilong, Mr. Yao Enshu, Mr. Yang Fugiang and
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve attended such training session.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is currently consisted of four members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Yejun (chairman) and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yao
Enshu, Mr. Yang Fugiang and Mr. Tsui, Siu Hang Steve. It was
established by the Board with effect from 27 March 2012 and
its duties are clearly defined in its terms of reference which have
been prepared and adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Nomination Committee reviews regularly the structure, size
and composition of the Board and may make recommendations
to the Board on the nominees for appointment as directors for
their consideration and approval. The Nomination Committee
has not held any meeting for this purpose during the year under
review as the Company has not appointed any new director
during the year under review.
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TEERBE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) currently comprised four members, three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yao Enshu (chairman),
Mr. Yang Fugiang and Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, and one
executive Director, Mr. Xu Yejun. The Remuneration Committee
was established by the Board on 7 June 2010 and its duties are
clearly defined in its written terms of reference which have been
prepared and adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Remuneration Committee meets annually to review the
remuneration policies and packages for Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations
to the Board on such remuneration policies and packages. No
Director takes part in any discussions and decisions about his
own remuneration.

Details of attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2012
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Yang Fugiang 11
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 1/1

There was no disagreement between the Board’s and the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment of the external
auditor.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
Remuneration Committee had convened one meeting with
full attendance by its members and conducted the following
activities:

(1)  reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company;

(2) reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all the
executive Directors by reference to their performance.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve (chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and
Mr. Yang Fugiang. The Audit Committee was established by
the Board on 7 June 2010 and its duties are clearly defined in
its written terms of reference which have been prepared and
adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group’s audit. It also reviews the annual and
interim reports of the Company prior to their approval by the
Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit and of
internal controls and risk evaluation.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee has
convened 2 meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company;
(2) reviewed the report of internal audit department, internal
controls system and financial matters of the Group in

pursuance of the written terms of reference;

(3) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor of the Company; and

(4)  made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor.
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EEERRE

Details of attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu 2/2
Mr. Yang Fugiang 2/2
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 2/2

There was no disagreement between the Board’s and the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment of the external
auditor.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the nature
of the audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditors of the Company, and the relevant fees
paid/payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Annual audit 1,250,000
Interim review 510,000

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2012, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and have prepared the
financial statements on a historical cost basis.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 50 to 52 of this annual
report of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control. The Board has entrusted the audit
committee with the responsibility to review the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control annually or at any time necessary.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions, and takes into account the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (“Shareholders”) of
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”) of the Company are prepared in accordance with
Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company:

(@) one or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings shall have the right,
by written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Suite 2007, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company

Address: Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to direct enquiries to the Company

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: Suite 2007, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2530 0401

Fax: (852) 2530 0662

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer
and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders
can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business at Suite 2007, Tower 1,
Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the board of directors of the
Company will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an EGM.

(b)  Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(c) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting of
the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Yejun, aged 48, the co-founder of our Group, is the
chairman, chief executive officer and our executive Director.
Mr. Xu was appointed as our executive Director on 4 February
2010. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. Xu has extensive experience
in the advanced steel flow control products industry, and has
been engaging in such business for over 25 years. Mr. Xu is the
son-in-law of the brother of Mr. Gu Aoxing (B&8#17), one of our
executive Directors.

Mr. Xu studied in & # 8 K& # Z(Yixing Dapu Secondary
School*) from 1979 to 1981. Mr. Xu had been trained in J&F5
N EAFZERT (Luoyang Institute of Refractories Research®) from
1984 to 1986. He had worked in B S8 &5 il A £HE (Yixing
Magnena Refractory Materials Factory*) from 1981 to 1983
and from 1987 to 1989, in Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials
Co., Ltd. ERFBEIFSBEMHARADE from 1990 to 1995
and in EEFRFNEZEABREAR (Yixing Zhongcun Kin Products
Co., Ltd.*) from 1996 till the establishment of Sinoref (Yixing) in
2005.

For his research item EBEBEZERZERIEEEE W AM
BL# E G T2 (The research and manufacture of new high
quality refractory accessory materials in glass melting furnace
regenerative chamber series*), Mr. Xu was awarded A EI# T
¥R S48 (China Light Industry Technological Advancement
Award*) by FREIE T4 € (China Light Industry Association®)
in 1991, /™M & 2 /T & 8 (Science and Technology
Progress Awards of Shanghai) by F/&TEIEE T 8T E L
B& (Science and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai
Municipality) in 1995 and /8 M EHERTEKEFZ (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Advancement in Shanghai*)
by EEMRIZRTZ &€ (Science and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Municipality) in 1996. Mr. Xu was also awarded
BRI R #2542 (Science and Technology Progress Awards
of Shanghai) by EEMRIZ#TE S EFEZEE (Science
and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai Municipality)
in 1996 in respect of BHFEAMERNTR FERIIKEE R
& (The research and manufacture of high quality specific
regenerative chambers checkers series accessory products®).
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EERSREERE

Mr. Xu, jointly with Dr. Zhang, also invented the SERIEE AT
KA (Subentry Nozzle for thin slab casting process) under the
CSP Project which was registered as a patent (in respect of
utility) in the PRC in January 2010. In addition, Mr. Xu, jointly
with Dr. Zhang and Mr. Wang Zhizhong, our senior management
staff, invented the W44 7 A 5 ES A) % 82 = 2 & (Mono block
Stopper with controlled gas flow) which was registered as a
patent (in respect of utility) in the PRC in May 2010.

Dr. Zhang Lanyin, aged 50, the co-founder of our Group
and our chief technical officer, was appointed as our executive
Director on 8 March 2010. Dr. Zhang is responsible for the
production and research and development aspects of our
Group.

Dr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Science (majoring in
refractory materials) from E\Z 2t (Wuhan Institute of Steel
and Iron Technology?), the former Wuhan University of Science
and Technology, in 1982 and a master’s degree in Science
from &5 A M EHFZEFE (Luoyang Institute of Refractories
Research*) in 1985. He obtained a degree of Doctor of
Philosophy by the department of Materials and Metallurgical
Engineering of Queen’s University at Kingston, Canada in 1996.

Dr. Zhang has been engaging in the advanced steel flow control
products business for over 25 years. Dr. Zhang worked in &5
it KM AR FEBE (Luoyang Institute of Refractories Research®)
from 1986 to 1990. He joined Vesuvius International Inc. in 1994
and worked in the Vesuvius group for eight years until he left as
the Deputy General Manager of Vesuvius Advanced Ceramics
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd. in 2002. He then joined Minteq International
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Minerals Technologies Inc.,
an international refractory company, as the Vice President Asia
in 2002 and worked there for four years until 2006.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEiZBRARAQE
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Directors and Senior Management

During the past years, Dr. Zhang had issued various
publications. For instance, he published a paper titled “High
toughness silicon carbide/graphite laminar composite by slip
casting” in 1995. Further, based on the records of the United
States Patent and Trademark Office, Dr. Zhang, jointly with
others, were the inventors of the “high toughness carbide
ceramics by slip casting and method thereof” which was
registered as a patent in the United States in 1995. He, jointly
with Mr. Xu, also invented the S&iR#)E AR KO (Subentry
Nozzle for thin slab casting process) under the CSP Project
which was registered as a patent (in respect of utility) in the
PRC in January 2010. In addition, Dr. Zhang, jointly with Mr. Xu
and Mr. Wang Zhizhong, our senior management staff, invented
the ATEEHIREAREEEENERE (Mono block Stopper with
controlled gas flow) which was registered as a patent (in respect
of utility) in the PRC in May 2010.

Mr. Gu Aoxing, aged 61, was appointed as our executive
Director on 7 June 2010. Mr. Gu is responsible for the corporate
and financial matters of our Group. Mr. Gu Aoxing is the brother
of Mr. Xu’s father-in-law.

Mr. Gu completed a professional technical training in relation
to Rural Finance organised by BEEMRIZRMZEZEE (Yixing
Technology Committee*) and E & 8 B B (Yixing Finance
Bureau®) in 1989. In 2000, Mr. Gu passed the examination on
S EEYB IS (Basic Knowledge on Computerised
Accounting®) organised by B £ ™ 8 X B (Yixing Finance
Bureau*). In 2001, Mr. Gu was qualified as an accountant by #&
5™ AE R (Wuxi Municipal Personnel Bureau®).

Prior to joining our Group in 2007, Mr. Gu had held financial
managerial positions in various companies, including acting as
the Assistant Finance Manager at B EE (Yixing Xinwei
Group*) from 1991 to 1999 and the Finance Manager at & ®i
22 AR A F)(Yixing Zhongeun Kiln Products Co., Ltd.*) from
2000 to 2007. Mr. Gu was also an executive director of China
Rare Earth Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 769), a company
listed on the Main Board, from 25 August 1999 to 19 May
2000.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Gao Zhilong, aged 36, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 7 June 2010. Mr. Gao obtained a
bachelor’s degree in mechanical design and manufacture from
MR EZE AE (Nanjing Agricultural University) in 1999. He then
worked as an assistant engineer in EMEIREELEFRE R
Al (Changzhou Changjiang Coach Group Company Limited*).
Mr. Gao has worked in the quality control department in (&
M5 TEAR] (Hua Wei Na Jingmi Gongju Company*) since
December 2005. Mr. Gao is interested in approximately 25% of
the share capital of Sinoref International.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Enshu, aged 80, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 7 June 2010. He was appointed
as Ae TEHHIL AR K (Deputy Head of the Personnel
Department in the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry*) in the
PRC in 1983 and was appointed as /A% LEHAEZA AR
(Head of the Human Resources Department in the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry*) in 1988. He was recognised as a
senior economist by JA®& T30 (The Ministry of Metallurgical
Industry®) in the PRC in 1992.

Mr. Yang Fuqiang, aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 7 June 2010. He
engaged in research and development work of nonferrous
metals metallurgy, and was awarded the = =5 [ 5 %% B 42
(Third State Invention Prize*) in 1987. He was appointed as the
deputy head and head of L¥#R& — Al & (Department of
Nonferrous Metals, Consolidated Industry Bureau*) in 1998 and
in 1990 respectively. Mr. Yang retired in December 1998.
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Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, aged 39, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 19 November 2010. Graduated from The University of
Auckland, New Zealand with a bachelor’s degree in Commerce
(Accounting) in 1995, Mr. Tsui is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and a Chartered Accountant in New Zealand. He
has also obtained the qualification of Financial Risk Manager
from the Global Association of Risk Professional. Mr. Tsui
worked for Pricewaterhouse Coopers as an audit manager
from 1992 to 1997. From 2001 till now, he works as auditor
in various companies. Mr. Tsui has more than 15 years of
experience in the auditing field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Chi Ming George HKCPA, ACIS, ACS, aged
37, is the chief financial officer and company secretary of
our Company. He joined our Group in January 2010 and is
responsible for managing the corporate finance department
of our Group, including overseeing financial management,
compliance and reporting obligations of our Group. Mr. Tam has
over 10 years’ experience in auditing, financial management and
corporate finance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tam worked
for KPMG Corporate Finance Limited as Senior Manager,
responsible for executing merger and acquisition transactions.
Mr. Tam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Tam holds
a bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of London.

Mr. Wang Zhizhong, aged 45, is the deputy general manager
and the head of our Production Department. Mr. Wang joined
our Group in 2005. Mr. Wang was qualified as an assistant

in 1995. He obtained EAMBIEKRTHKEZESE (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Achievement in Shanghai*)
for each of the project named “1E& &5 E 1A s F 2= DGR
(Development of hollow composite fusion cast blocks*) and “X
RN EE FHABAFAMRAME REMNFIR" (Research on
novel refractories for super structure of glass furnace*) from £
EHRIEZRMZEZEE (Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality) in 2000.
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Mr. Wang worked in the production technology department in
various companies including Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials
Co., Ltd. EEEBEFCEBMH AR AR and HEPFEHE
AR A7 (Yixing Zhongcun Kiln Products Co., Ltd.*), before
joining our Group in 2005. In addition, Mr. Wang, jointly with
Mr. Xu and Dr. Zhang, invented the AJ#H|ii AR AR LR
FE# (Mono block Stopper with controlled gas flow) which was
registered as a patent (in respect of utility) in the PRC in May
2010.

Mr. Jiang Panyuan, aged 49, joined us in 2007 as head of
our Purchasing Department. Mr. Jiang is mainly responsible
for our procurement and environmental protection matters. Mr.
Jiang graduated from L& & EEERE4 (Jiangsu Radio and
TV Institute*) in 2001 and worked as the officer in a community
association in Yixing Yang'an (B & ¥ F T RZ & €) from 1989
to 2007 prior to joining our Group.

Mr. Tang Jishan, aged 39, joined us in 2007 as head of
our Research and Development Department. He obtained his
bachelor’s and master’s degree in Metallurgy of Iron and Steel in
2001, both from Wuhan University of Science and Technology.
He has experience in the field of metallurgical industry. He
worked in the sales department in Vesuvius Advanced Ceramics
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd..

Mr. Dai Donglin, aged 44, joined us in 2007 as executive
regional sales manager. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Arts from Henan University in 1992. He then joined Vesuvius
Advanced Ceramics (Suzhou) Co. Ltd. from 1995 to 2004.
Mr. Dai furthered his studies on Civil and Commercial Law
between 1998 and 2000 in Jilin University. He has many years
of experiences in sales management.

For the purpose of this section, “*” denotes unofficial English translation.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of
advanced steel flow control products used in the continuous
casting steel making process to protect, control and regulate
the flow of molten steel.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in Mainland China. An analysis of the Group’s income for the
year is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2012 are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 53 of this report.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs at 31
December 2012 is set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of financial position on pages
54 and 109 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 1HK cent).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The result, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, are summarised on page 112 of this report.

Report of the Directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of properties of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note 26
to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report,
there was a sufficiency of public float the Company’s securities
as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Percentage

of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

Purchases
— the largest supplier 15.7%
— five largest suppliers combined 33.9%
Sales
— the largest customer 11.2%
— five largest customers combined 34.0%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest
in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted
above.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed
above.
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DIRECTORS 5%

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date RENBEEAREARZESNT -
of this report were:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman and chief executive officer) REBIE (FRFTHARES)
Dr. Zhang Lanyin R IRIE T

Mr. Gu Aoxing BEFITRAE

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Gao Zhilong [ShoS: it

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Yao Enshu ok BB S

Mr. Yang Fugiang BER kA

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve wIRIEERE

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES EFEEE

Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 27 to 32 of this report. EEBEEENEAFME27EI2E °
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EFERHEEH

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service BEPTEFEEBHEARFEIIREE
contract with our Company pursuant to which they agreed to 2 BEEREREE_Z—ZFFHAtH
act as executive Directors for an initial term of three years with BETHITES VX ABH=F - THH
effect from 7 June 2010. The term of service shall be renewed RYIBERE R 2 EEFERERR A
and extended automatically by one year on the expiry of such BER—TF  BEEEM—HRRITEHE
initial term and on the expiry of every successive period of WAIA S —HER TN PR=EA 2 E@mA
one year thereafter, unless either party has given at least three MATEBAL -

months’ written notice of non-renewal before the expiry of the

then existing term.
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Each of our non-executive Director and our independent non-
executive Directors (except for Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve) has
been appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from
7 June 2010 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
our non-executive Director or our independent non-executive
Director, as applicable, or our Company giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of the initial
term or at any time thereafter. Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 21 November
2010, has been appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 21 November 2010 renewable automatically
for successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by either Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve himself or our
Company giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 30 under
the heading “Related Party Transactions” to the financial
statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business, to which the Company or
any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party nor there were
any other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business between the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time
during the year in which a Director had, whether directly or
indirectly, a material interest.

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.
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No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code”), are set out below:

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares

Number of

Name of Director Nature of interest securities held
(Note 1)

EERR EaNHE FrisHR%8E
(K1at1)

Mr. Xu Yejun Beneficial owner 360,000,000 Shares (L)
RERRE xR A 360,000,000 i 5 (L)
Interest of spouse 500,000 Shares (L)

[N e 500,000/ A&7 (L)

Mr. Gao Zhilong Beneficial owner 171,000,000 Shares (L)
AR EHEAA 171,000,0008& B 15 (L)
Dr. Zhang Lanyin  Beneficial owner 90,000,000 Shares (L)
REIRE BEHEAA 90,000,000/% i% {7 (L)
Mr. Gu Aoxing Beneficial owner 36,000,000 Shares (L)
BERITRAE BEREAA 36,000,000/ %5 (L)
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BRERT LA R B S B AR M B A R 2 2
IR IR [A) A B gl HAE ] B B A IR AR TS
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EERROzER

R-E——F+-_A=+—H ' AQRA=E
ERITBERH A AR Al E T A RIS

(EERBHERBMEGR ([EFHREPE
BBI]) EXVER) < ktn - RS RE
FHRAEE RN A RRIBEES ARG E
352§ BTF B 2 B M prac sk - siiRIE
BE R A EFIEXVEI R ET AT E S
TEFXHMRESFR ([E2ESFR]) A
MEARB Rz = RABIT

REOREBERDZFARKR

Interest in
underlying shares
of share option

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

(Note 1) (%)

MRz 0]

kR ES BOL

(K1) (%)

3,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 30.25
3,000,000 (L) (A7a£2)

500,000 (L) (Note 4) 0.042
500,000 (L) (A7at4)

- 14.25

9,000,000 (L) (Note 3) 8.25
9,000,000 (L) (A74£3)

9,000,000 (L) (Note 3) 3.75
9,000,000 (L) (A72£3)



Notes:

1.

Save

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

On 22 November 2010, Mr. Xu Yejun was granted 3,000,000
options under the share option scheme of the Company to
subscribe for 3,000,000 Shares, exercisable at a price of
HK$1.408 per share in three tranches in the proportion of 30%,
60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November 2012 and
22 November 2013 respectively. The options have a term of ten
years commencing from 22 November 2010.

On 22 November 2010, each of Mr. Gu Aoxing and Dr. Zhang
Lanyin was granted 5,000,000 options under the share option
scheme of the Company to subscribe for 5,000,000 Shares,
exercisable at a price of HK$1.408 per share in three tranches in
the proportion of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22
November 2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively. The options
have a term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010.

On 27 September 2011, each of Mr. Gu Aoxing and Dr. Zhang
Lanyin was granted 4,000,000 options under the share option
scheme of the Company to subscribe for 4,000,000 Shares,
exercisable at a price of HK$0.476 per share in three tranches in
the proportion of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012,
27 September 2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively. The
options have a term of ten years commencing from 27 September
2011.

These options were held by Ms. Gu Shuping, the wife of Mr. Xu
Yejun.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the

Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest

or sh

ort positions of the in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as was known to the Directors
of the Company, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

FERRZHER

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H ®ARd
BFHA UTAL (RRAZEERITH
BE BRI AR RIREAD R 48 B8 B 5 P B
BEREESKAAE KA FEI6EZE LR
AARTFENELMZESIARNT

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying RBOREEROZHFERKR
Shares
Interest in  Approximate
Name of Number of underlying shares percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest securities held of share option shareholding
(Note 1) (Note 1) (%)
{2 i o):d ]
BRER HaNHE FrisiE S8 HE HRERRS B
(Htat1) (Hiat1) (%)
Ms. Gu Shuping Interest of spouse 360,000,000 Shares (L) 3,000,000 (L) 30.25
(Note 2) [IReE e 360,000,000% i 17 (L) 3,000,000 (L)
Btz + (fit2) Beneficial owner - 500,000 (L) 0.042
EmEA A - 500,000 (L
Ms. Chai Xiaoyuan Interest of spouse 171,000,000 Shares (L) - 14.25
(Note 3) [iRRisE v e 171,000,0008%B&15 (L) -

SXEL L (A153)

Ms. Zhao Yijun (Note 4) Interest of spouse

MREBLL (KiF4) Ao B e 90,000,000/% %5 (L)
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2. Ms. Gu Shuping is the wife of Mr. Xu Yejun.
3. Ms. Chai Xiaoyuan is the wife of Mr. Gao Zhilong.

4. Ms. Zhao Yijun is the wife of Dr. Zhang Lanyin.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as
at 31 December 2012, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
of general meetings of the Company or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 27 June 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

()  any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any
member of the Group holds any shareholding (including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director of the Group or any Invested Entity);

(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(v any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and
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(viii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
120,000,000, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of Shares issuable upon exercise of the options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, such grant of
share options are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, which
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer for the grant of share options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of the grant, which must be a business day;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and

(i)  the nominal value of the Shares.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2012,
120,000,000 share options has been granted by the Company,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of the options, which were granted under the share

option scheme, during the year were listed below in accordance
with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

No. of share options

EFEREREzED

BEBRBRET SR 2 BRERFAZE
BRI ETARAIE17.07TIEZHI T ¢

BRESE
Granted Exercised Forfeited Cancelled  Lapsed Outstanding at
Date of Outstanding at during during during during during 31 December
grant 1January 2011  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear  the year 2011
RIB--% RZ8--%
-B-A +ZA=t+-R
BHHAM HEGHE  FARE  FATE  FRER FREE EREX L3
Name of Director EFNE
or his associate REARE
Mr. Xu Yejun RERSHE 22111/2010 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
Dr. Zhang Lanyin FEAET 22111/2010 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000
(Note 3)
(His)
271912011 - 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
(Note 4)
(Hita)
Mr. Gu Aoxing BUOEE 22111/2010 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000
(Note 8)
(Hi3)
271912011 - 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
(Note 4)
(it4)
Ms. Gu Shuping Biiar 2211/2010 500,000 - - - - - 500,000

(Note 1) (Witt)
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HK$

#r

1.408

1.408

0476

1.408

0476

1.408

Exercise
Period

M

22/11/2011 to
21/11/2020
220112
21/11/2020
22/11/2011 to
21/11/2020
2/11/20112
21/11/2020
27/9/2012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
221112011 to
2171172020
2/12011%
2171172020
211912012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
22/11/2011 to
21/11/2020
2120112
21/11/2020



Notes:

1. Ms. Guo Shuping is the wife of Mr. Xu Yejun, the chairman, the
chief executive officer and an executive Director of the Company
and hence an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Mr. Xu
Yejun.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately on before the date on
which the options were granted was HK$1.43.

3. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November
2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively.

4. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2011 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012, 27 September
2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively.

Further details of share options were stipulated in note 27 to
the financial statements. Apart from the aforesaid, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2011 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.

Report of the Directors
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EEEWRE

EMPLOYEES’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme for the period under review are
as follows:

No. of share options

EERMEREBZER

REEHA - RIEERETE A REAR
Al 2 ERERE B AN T

Outstanding at ~ Granted Exercised Forfeited Cancelleld  Lapsed Outstanding at Exercise
Date of 1 January during during during during during 31 December price if Exercise
Class of grantee ~ FBAER grant 2011 theyear theyear theyear  theyear  the year 2011 share options Period
RI2—% RZ8—-
-A-H ) . t2AZt+-H Lt e )
RHAH HEGE  FRRE  FAGE  FRER EREE ERER GEi TTI% T8
BT

Directors (Note 1) B2 (i) 22/11/2010 13,000,000 - - - - - 13,000,000 1.408 22/1 12011
MNoied) 1o 1/11/2020
(Hit3) (Noe5)

22/11/2011
£1/11/2020
(Wits)
27/9/2011 - 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000 0.476 27/9/2012
MNoted) 0 26/9/2021
(Hit4) (Note 6)

27/9/2012

£26/9/2021
(Nf,afﬁ/

Other employees EWEE (o) 2211172010 47,000,000 - - - - - 47,000,000 1.408 22/1 12011
(Note 2) (Note 3) 21/11/2020
(Hits) (Noe5)

22111/2011
ﬁQT/ﬂ/QQ?O
(Wits)
27/9/2011 - 52,000,000 - - - - 52,000,000 0.476 27/9/2012
(Note 4] 10 26/9/2021
(Hi#4) (Note 6)
27/9/2012
£26/9/2021
(fit6)

Notes: HiEE

1. Details of options granted to the Directors are set out in the 1. BETEEBEBREs FRENLXESE
paragraph headed “Directors’ Interest in Share Options” in the WERNESRERE 2 ER] B -
Report of the Directors above.

2. Other employees include employees of the Group (other than 2. HitEERERBEASEMERGLOL
Directors) working under employment contract of the Group B ASEES (EEHRIN) - MZER
which are regarded as “continuous contract” for the purpose of BaXsEREDN (BEENETE) #
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). RAETHEGLH] -

3. The closing price of the Shares on the date on which the options 3. BORKEEREBRZWKTER43
were granted was HK$1.43. BT o

4. The closing price of the Shares on the date on which the options 4. BRORREEREB B2 WTER0.43
were granted was HK$0.43. AT ©

5.  These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a 5. Ei%*ﬁ?@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁu“jzﬁﬁﬁx%ZE
term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010 and shall WEm _ZE-TF+ - AT _HEs
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion BETE MR ——F+—AZ
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November TR —Z—=—F+—A-+-HE
2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively. —T—=F+—A=Z+=H" Dl

30% * 60% % 100%2 LBl - 9 =# 58
KA FITfE -

6. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a 6. LR R T EREY S
term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2011 and shall WHR —_E——F LA -+ HESA
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion Ht+E MR- ——FhLA-_++
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012, 27 September H " &—=—FEAA-++HE-T—
2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively. MEALB=-++H " DRIE30% - 60%

1}%100%2%15‘] A ZHEBRA T

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE



RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Options”
and “Directors’ Interest in Shares” above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to have any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
usual course of business are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. None of these related party transactions constitutes
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the year and up to the
date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Report of the Directors
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EEEWRE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior management
of the Group is set up by the remuneration committee of
the Company on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events after the reporting period which
would require disclosure to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the requirements as set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and
internal controls of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Tsui Siu Hang,
Steve (Chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and Mr. Yang Fugiang.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditors financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the qualification for attending the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 18 June 2013,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
14 June 2013 to 18 June 2013 (both dates inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be qualify for attending the annual general meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 June 2013.

By order of the Board
Sinoref Holdings Limited
Xu Yejun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2013

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED
EMRZERARAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to
112, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 March 2013

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERSER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Interest income on bank deposits
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

LN
HEKA

E£F

RITIF SREM BHA
HE R HRA

B GE3

BR B A A
IR

ZNNGIL 2PN
FREMRFA
e ONCE

FRAH
E2YIN

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes
MisE

10

14

HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
322,671 323,421
(169,687) (142,722)
152,984 180,699

1,399 1,700
(29,474) (28,334)
(31,244) (39,297)

93,665 114,768
(21,186) (22,757)

72,479 92,011
RMB6.04 cents RMB7.67 cents
AR#6.04% ARET.67H
RMB6.04 cents RMB7.67 cents
AR#6.04% AREET.675H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B RS AR O R

At 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=-HA=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Deposit paid for acquisition of plant
and equipment

FRENEE
ME - BB R&iE
BN S RIE

WERE kRBEE NS

Current assets mEEE

Inventories FE

Trade receivables B 5 WG IE

Bills receivables e =R

Other receivables, deposits H b pEUFRIE -
and prepayments B4 MIEFoE

Prepaid land lease payments TEfT b T & FRIE

Tax recoverable AT B 718

Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS

Current liabilities mENRE

Trade payables B 5 e 5RIE

Other payables and accruals HERNRIERERTE A

Tax liabilities MIEBE

Net current assets mENEERE

Total assets less current liabilities WEMERTHEE

Non-current liability EREBER

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIES R

Capital and reserves BEXRER

Share capital [N

Reserves 1

Total equity Eaus

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 112 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
19 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

EF
DIRECTOR

54 Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

2012 2011

—g——& -—T &

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE ARBTT ARMETFTT
15 111,604 123,320
16 9,862 10,097
- 31

121,466 133,448

17 19,979 24,913
18 131,151 117,905
19 46,937 39,715
685 688

16 235 235
4,294 -

20 369,805 305,572
573,086 489,028

21 22,537 21,007
22 32,066 36,185
6,500 11,014

61,103 68,206

511,983 420,822

633,449 554,270

23 13,720 9,425
619,729 544,845

24 104,201 104,201
515,528 440,644

619,729 544,845

RESIEI2AEZHEAMBEBRAHESTS
R-E-—=ZF=ZAtNAHERKET
o WHIATRERRE

EF
DIRECTOR



At 1 January 2011

Profit for the year representing
total comprehensive
income for the year

Final dividend for year
ended 31 December 2010

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Transfer to statutory reserves

At 31 December 2011

Profit for the year representing
total comprehensive
income for the year

Final dividend for year
ended 31 December 2011

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Transfer to statutory reserves

At 31 December 2012

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

Share
Share Share Special  Statutory options  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total
ks BROHERR  RBRRHE  EEHG BRERE | REEN L
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mta) GED)
RZE——F
—-A-H 104,201 80,442 46,867 26,588 1,895 210,004 469,997
FERET (EER
PERAEE)
- - - - - 92,011 92,011
HE-T-ZF
+-A=1+-AL
FEZREKRE - - - - - (35,207)  (35,207)
BRBRAEE I
R RERAR - - - - 18,044 - 18,044
BREETRE - - - 12,685 - (12,685) -
RZZ—F
+ZA=+-AH 104,201 80,442 46,867 39,273 19,939 254,123 544,845
FREF (RER
PEMAGE)
- - - - - 72,479 72,479
HE-Z——F
T-A=+-AL
FEIRERE - - - - - (9,840) (9,840)
BARAEE N
iy AERMR - - - - 12,245 - 12,245
BETETRE - - - 9,545 - (9,545) -
RZE-_F
+ZA=+-H 104,201 80,442 46,867 48,818 32,184 307,217 619,729
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012

H=E

—E—ZFTZA=T—HILFE

Notes:

(@)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of shares of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange for the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the corporate
reorganisation (the “Corporate Reorganisation”) to rationalise the
Group’s structure prior to listing of the Company’s shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the PRC subsidiary is
required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including
enterprise expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of
appropriations from its statutory net profit (based on the PRC
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiary) but before
dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
PRC subsidiary’s board of directors. The board of directors of the
PRC subsidiary shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated
based on its profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The
general reserves fund may be used to offset accumulated losses
or increase the registered capital subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

EMZERERAT

FARERERARBRNDERBH AR
ZRAERAR LT AT BERNEER
BMETAREMR ((ATEMA]) 28
ERZBIMEB AR RN REMETZ
ARARRMHEE - BARFHERF
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RBPEARKME ([HE]) GEED
NOER  — KT BB ARAREEE
EAFERR (RIBZTEMEQRZPBEE
EFBHER) ROKREAIZLLOIIREE
SERBEEEHE BRCERERES
R—REERES -

HEEZMEPEIBZTENBARZ
EZeRBRE - PEMBARCES
ERREESFRANENMRER T D
Bl 2 5RIA ©
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AES IR T B AR PY 2 HE 1R T TR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

2012 2011
25 —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBTT
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation R B AT A 93,665 114,768
Adjustments for: FUATEBEELAZ -
Interest income FLEBA (1,399) (1,700)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEEME - BB KR 7 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BELXENE 12,635 7,532
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TA 0 & SR 8 235 234
Share-based payments expense VAR 1 B E TR B L 12,245 18,044
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREHH 2 LEREN
in working capital 117,388 138,878
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERLD (Em) 4,934 (9,640)
Increase in trade receivables B 2 MR N (13,246) (21,312)
Increase in bills receivable JE IS BRI AN (7,222) (9,136)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, Hitn e EIE - e Rk
deposits and prepayments TAR IR (3En) 3 (172)
Increase in trade payables B 5 Fe s FIRE N 1,530 5,759
Increase in other payables and accruals Hith JETFUE K EAHE ARG N 21 1,836
Net cash generated from operations BETDEEZCHERE 103,408 106,213
PRC income tax paid BB EH (25,699) (18,167)
Net cash from operating activities BETDRERLBH 77,709 88,046
Investing activities BREEH
Interest received B UYERFIS 1,399 1,700
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BE LB (5,035) (64,490)
Deposit paid for acquisition of plant and equipment WEKE &R ED Hikd = (31)
Net cash used in investing activities REFEHMARESH (3,636) (62,821)
Cash used in financing activities MEITHRARS
Dividends paid ERRE (9,840) (35,207)
Net increase (decrease) in cash BeRAEFEMEM
and cash equivalents (WD) B8 64,233 (9,982)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning EMRERBEEEN
of the year 305,572 315,554
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FE#RERRESEY -
representing bank balances and cash ARITESBEIAE IR 369,805 305,572
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Notes to the Consolidated F|nanC|aI Statements

= b B TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 30.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers of
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements
HKAS 1 to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycles

Issued in 2012

Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs had no
material effect on the results or financial position of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.
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2. ER#MITREEITEEME
WEEAN (])

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

AREBESEREPRAULTERME
R AR AR 2 5] R BRI BB M5

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: AR
Amendments to Annual Improvements to EBUBRE B BRERE
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycles, R 7 B3] “EENF -
except for the amendments to “E-—F@52

HKAS 12

R ARG

RRE1R BTN

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial oyt g S il RE - HHEEREER
HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities? BTR 2B tRERE
Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of BB ERE LD ERERRS L]
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and Transition FORRBERIBAE 2R BHEN
HKFRS 7 Disclosures* BHETH 2 B3] BHLAEERE
Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements, BB R LS| SARBRER
HKFRS 10, Joint Arrangements and Disclosures F10% - BEHE RAZHRERE
HKFRS 11 and of Interests in Other Entities: LEBZENER REMER #x
HKFRS 12 Transition Guidance? BB BREED BERE
F12R 23]
Amendments to Investment Entities? BB BREED REEE
HKFRS 10, F10% - ARG
HKFRS 12 and HRAZ125%R
HKAS 27 B EL
BT
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* EEBIRRLEER|F0% 4RI A
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? EBB R ER FABBRER
F10%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? EAERRS LD HEZ
F11%
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in BB ERE LD BENEMERE ER
Other Entities? F12%
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? EEHERE LD ATEFTE
F13%
Amendment to Presentation of Items of EBestEs| 2 EuEEBAER"
HKAS 1 Other Comprehensive Income’ B1REF]
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits? EAeEL EERHP
(as revised in 2011) F19% (7
“T——FEET)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements? BAEL BB BRR
(as revised in 2011) FoT% (B
—E-—FEEE)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and EAeEL REENAR
(as revised in 2011) Joint Ventures? E28% (B REREIRE
“T——FEET)
Amendment to Offsetting Financial Assets and yir ]| HHEEHEER
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities® B/ LET TRER
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BE (BRMERE  BABSLESN
Phase of a Surface Mine? ABZEE)- HBrak A2
REF0F
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised HKFRSs,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statement of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
sales related tax.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are classified as
construction in progress and are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when

the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefits costs

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The PRC subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong. The Group contributes 5% of
the relevant payroll costs or HK$15,000, equivalent to
RMB12,000 (2011: HK$12,000, equivalent to RMB10,000)
per employee per annum, whichever is lower, to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of both
schemes.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment loss on tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, bills receivables and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and bills receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and bills receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade payables and other

payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

FEEHBF (8)

EBIT A (&)
AU TERR

NeMEEWRIRESRENS LE
MEH IEREREE MAK
BEEBESREEMBENBAR
R K AR AEIEERERE
E-WMASBEYESEHREME
HE O 4B KR 1) [ B B [ R 0 A AR
PrFEREE  AAKEEREE
BETHREEZ  WHRATEAX
NHWEeBERIERAE - WAKE
REMBERTREEMBENER
B0 B B Bl 5 - B AN S2 (B A AR
Rz BEE - Tl E WA R
EREEMEE -

REILEREMEMEER - LA
BERMEED KR EEKRAERE
EHEEMEmE ST ERL EES
PEANREBRRANZHENER

REEAEE 2 ETERE - BUR
HEIHE - TR ILEREREA
o RIEANEREBERTER
ENREMNRENEZENBETE

7
e

Annual Report 2012 —Z—_FF3if

73



74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= b B TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries, the fair value of
services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are less than the original estimated useful
lives due to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the depreciation
charge for the remaining periods. At 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
RMB111,604,000 (2011: RMB123,320,000).

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

EHSRFAREEZERRIF
(#)

RRABFER ZEE REBR
f&

R e ML T AT REEE
FIEET 2 B - RIBREERT €@ %
HIMRR HEBETZENNK
REHE - MBBER] S EEFTH

8 MR SR AR R

AT AR BRAKRAEL B RRARK
MEBRBRIRGEFTHREREZZH
b EEZHR - W ABEE R A
EEHAR TEAMBRFEREER
BEMREEFHENTE

M- BERREHIERFH

RERBEEYME  BEREEFRE
WEdHRE BEEDNRED
¥ BERREREZITELRY
DEBBRTERGRMETSEY
2 BEMSEBZUFERFH - W
M- BERZBOERAERAE
B AREERBRIIRERE AR
DRBEREEZAIEAFTEH 5
EHEBYERTHRAZITERS -
R-ZE——F+-A=+—80 %
¥ BELZREZREERARK
111,604,000 (ZZE——F : AR
#123,320,0007T) °

Annual Report 2012 —Z—_FF3if

75



76

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= b B TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated allowances for inventories

The management estimates the net realisable value of
inventories based primarily on the latest market prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at the end of each reporting period and
makes allowance on obsolete and slow moving items to
write off or write down inventories to their net realisable
values. Where the expectation on the net realisable value
is lower than the carrying amount, an impairment may
arise. At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
inventories is RMB19,979,000 (2011: RMB24,913,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB131,151,000 (2011:
RMB117,905,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and

cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained

profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital

structure on a continuous basis taking into account the

cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.

The Group will balance its overall capital structure through

payment of dividend, issuance of new shares as well as

the issue of new debt, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, bills receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade payables and other
payables.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), Euro dollars (“EUR”)
and US dollars (“USD”) which are other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities (i.e.
RMB), which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated financial assets and liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

Assets
BE
2012
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The financial assets subject to foreign currency risk
represent the bank balances denominated in HKD
and trade receivables denominated in EUR and USD
held by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% appreciation or depreciation of the HKD, EUR
and USD against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the possible
change in foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rate. A positive number
indicates an increase in profit where HKD, EUR and
USD strengthens 5% against the RMB. For a 5%
weakening of HKD, EUR and USD against RMB,
there would be an equal and opposite impact.

HKD BT
EUR BT
UsD ETT

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances at the end of the
reporting period is considered as insignificant.
The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 13% (2011: 14%) and 37% (2011:
45%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. The customers of the Group
operate mainly steel casting plants in the PRC and
they are state-owned enterprises with sound financial
position and good reputation in the industry. The
Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
98% (31 December 2011: 99%) of the total trade
receivable as at 31 December 2012. In order to
minimise the concentration risk, the management
of the Group has delegated staff responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each of individual trade debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amount. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
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H BRESEKRFZBEREY
183% (ZF ——F : 14%) &k
7% (ZF ——F 1 45%) &
FIREAREEZZARFRA
AEFE AAEBRBFEYE
EREk - AEENEFIERE
REGEEINMmAEESE ARG
¥ BERREERERNE
BRI - AEBIRHIE DM
EERBREEEFRFE R
:2—:$+:HE+—EM
Z 5 MEURERE AR FEH98% (=
E——F+-fA=+—H":
99%) o A% & RER R E &
K AEBZEBRECZRE
TEEETEEERE 288
R H A EEARRR - DARE(R A
KRR ETERE B IER -
o - AEE T HEEE @R
JEFRIB Z AT Bl £ 58 - LARE
R E SR EL 7R

BEEE Bt E  ARFE
EREAEEZEERBRE X
TR BRI o

FEELERE

REEBRBHESRARME - &K
FERLEREREERRRE
WMEBENAEEEB RS LB
SHEEDKF - LARBERS
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

6.

e R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

&mMT AR ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SEEREEZBENRBER
(continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEELEE (8)
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than undiscounted
interest rate 3 months 3 months cash flows
mEFY BREXH to 1 year KR Total
ERfE  OR3fER SEREIE HEREw At
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETr ARETT AREBTT ARETR
As at 31 December 2012 R-EB—_%F
+=A=+—-H
Trade payables 2 S ERTA - 22,537 - 22,537 22,537
Other payables HibfEMIE - 4,272 - 4,272 4,272
26,809 - 26,809 26,809
As at 31 December 2011 R=-Z——%§
+-H=+—-H
Trade payables EY OE - 18,732 7,275 21,007 21,007
Other payables HA (TR - 8,482 - 8,482 8,482
22,214 7,275 29,489 29,489
Fair values (c) AF¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

TREENERBBELAFE
RIEBRRVE RO M AL BR
R EBRAEE -

EZRRNEE M B RERAMN
BERALBRZEREERS
BAEEREERE A FEM

4+

Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILEE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold less returns and discounts in the
normal course of business.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (the executive
directors) (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance.

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a
single operating segment focusing on the manufacture
and sale of advanced steel flow control products. This
operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies which conform to HKFRSs, that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM. The CODM monitors
the revenue from manufacture and sale of advanced steel
flow control products for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
However, other than revenue analysis, no operating results
and other discrete financial information is available for
the resource allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews the profit for the year of the Group
as a whole for performance assessment. No analysis of
segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they
are not regularly provided to the CODM.
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e MR ME

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Information about products

The revenue of the major products is analysed as follows:

Manufacture and sale of advanced
steel flow control products:

Subentry Nozzle

Stopper

Tundish Nozzle

Ladle Shroud

Information about geographical areas

B8 R IHE =
0] 7)< 12 37 E o

EARKO

EE

REEKA

KO

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue by geographical market:

The PRC (country of domicile)
Europe
Taiwan

GERGEEES
B

I
==

Over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets are located in

the PRC

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

EERE (K]

Em&H

FEEMBADOT
2012 2011
- —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
158,598 163,129
82,476 84,658
62,181 61,104
19,416 14,530
322,671 323,421

TREHASERNETIZE 50

AT -
2012 2011
—g—-f -—T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRFE  ARKTT
309,352 320,903
13,232 2,516
87 2
322,671 323,421

REEAIO%H IERBEEMNF

°
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer amounting to RMB36,260,000
(2011: RMB40,865,000) individually represents more than

10% of the Group’s revenue. Four types of products were
sold to that customer.

TAXATION

Current tax: RUEAFRIA -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EMSH
Overprovision in prior year VARTF S A RE RS
PRC withholding tax AR FE A

Deferred tax (note 23):
Current year

REE

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made
based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in
accordance with the relevant income tax laws and
regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiary.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New EIT Law”) by
Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6 December
2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New EIT Law (the “Implementation
Regulations”). The New EIT Law and the Implementation
Regulations unify the Enterprise Income Tax rate for
domestic and foreign enterprises at 25% from 1 January
2008.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

ERERIA (KFE23)

EESE (]|)
FTEEFEHR

KE—RBEPZHRAEARE
36,260,000 (ZE——F: AR
#40,865,0007T) * WG A& B AU
AHBiB10% - REBAZAEFH
EMEER -

2R

2012 2011

—B——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARKEFTT
16,906 17,769

(15) -

- 6,500
4,295 (1,512)

21,186 22,757

FEEEASTEEDREMGE
AR ) 1R R I AN 2 B E AR B B
BARZARBAEERANRERGE -

RZZEZEF=ZA+/58 " FER
ERBEEFESFE63HEM T (hE
ARZEMBE S EAERIE) ([FE%E
FrE8%]) - R-EZT+E+ A
ANB - PEBEBEEEST (PEAR
HAMBECEMESBEERMAND(TE
wamA) B EENE—F—H
MO EMSHERE ML S
BRARBIINCEBERODEMSH
R E|—F R25% o
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TAXATION (continued)

In accordance with the relevant income tax law as
applicable to the PRC subsidiary of the Company, it
was entitled to the exemption from the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the first two years commencing from
the first profit-making year after offsetting all unexpired
tax losses from previous years, and thereafter to a 50%
reduction for the next three years. 2007 was the first
profit-making year for the Company’s PRC subsidiary. As
a result, the Company’s PRC subsidiary was subject to
a PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 12.5% for the prior
year presented. This exemption from the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax expired at the end of 2011.

On 6 August 2012, the PRC subsidiary obtained a Hi-tech
certificate which is valid for three years. According to
GuoShuiHan [2009] No0.203, entities qualifying for the
Hi-tech status could enjoy a PRC Enterprise Income Tax
preferential treatment starting from the year of obtaining
the Hi-tech certificate. As a result, the PRC subsidiary was
subject to a PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 15% for three
years commencing from 2012.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008
No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits of PRC
entities generated after 1 January 2008 are subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax which is withheld by the PRC
entity. During the year ended 31 December 2012, deferred
tax expense of RMB4,295,000 (2011: RMB4,988,000) in
respect of the undistributed earnings of the Company’s
PRC subsidiary has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

MR ()

RIZE AR AR B T BB QR
BRMEHRE  ARRTEKBL
AR EEEEMEBEFRE 2K
fEimR IR ERR A 8 EENFERE
EMFERRPECEMER IR
Hig = F B %50%+ B (b X1
B —BELFRARBNHEM
BRARMWEEENFE - Hib - K
ARAHPREMEB AN E—25F
B A#12.5%H) h B X SH
KRG - RRBRTELEMAER
ZERER-_T——FFRIH -

RZZE——FN\ANB  ZPBEH
BRACESSFEMEEESE -
BEI = F o RIBE BB H[2009]5F
20358 - MARMEMEEEENE
REESRTRINCEFEEFIR
AEXHECEMEREBRSGS -
At - ZFBEHRBRRIE=Z—=
FHRAZFZZ15%PECEMS
A FB -

1B 5 R B R B M B R R A 48 S B
& B A @A (BF 5120085 15% X
") RZZEZENF—A—HZ®ER
R B E B8 ) A R R 2 IR EE
MPBEDEREY YHEZTEE
BEHN - -HE_ZT——F+_-A=
T—HILFE  BEARQEAFEKH
BARZADIKAEF 2 EEHIAE
A AR#4,295000T (ZF——
F: AR #4,088,0000T) ' &£ B &
mAZHEBERPER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income

9. WA (&)

BR B A A

BHRBEERAEHEE25%

Tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) —T——4F :25%)
TE A

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

THMBAS ZREZE

BERRBAZ REFE

Tax effect attributable to tax exemptions AP EBAREE ~
and concessions granted to the PRC MIER R MNEREKZ
subsidiary MG E
Tax effect attributable to preferential HTHREMEARERRE
rate granted to the PRC subsidiary BT E
PRC withholding tax BRI B
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings R B R RIR DR
of the PRC subsidiary B2 RIERIA
Overprovision in respect of prior years VAR F R 5B
Taxation for the year FRRIE

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

FARAXHEFEEERERZ
BRI ADE A E BRI

2012 2011
—B——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
93,665 114,768
23,416 28,692
4,774 6,863
(13) (17)
- (17,769)

(11,271) -

- 6,500

4,295 (1,512)

(15) -

21,186 22,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FRRF
2012 2011
—=——f —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Profit for the year has been arrived F @ MR T3

at after charging: THEBERN -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R4 1,074 978
Cost of inventories recognised BREAT ZHFEER A

as an expense 165,108 140,101
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREITE

plant and equipment 12,635 7,632
Amortisation of prepaid TET b TE & SR IEEE SN

land lease payments 235 234
Minimum lease payments in BEARAEMEL

respect of office premises HIEEETE 684 685
Write-off of property, W - BB RRE

plant and equipment 7 -
Exchange loss, net b H 518 )5 5E 194 1,612
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 8 LA (B IEEEEE)

— Salaries and other benefits — Fre REMETR 35,740 34,008

— Contributions to retirement — RREF B

benefits scheme 1,037 903
— Share-based payments — DA BERR R
(included in administrative expenses) (FFAITERA ) 12,245 18,044

49,022 52,955
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors,

which include the Chief Executive, were as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2012:

Executive directors:
Xu Yejun
Zhang Lanyin
Gu Aoxing

Non-executive director:
Gao Zhilong

BE-$-"F1ZR
Zt-BLEE:

HniTER:
HEE
b
BHf

FHiTES:

REE

Independent non-executive directors: By IEH{TES -

Yao Enshu
Yang Fugiang
Tsui Siu Hang, Steve

=

CBH

k!

e

g
7

%m

Y

4
o}
=23

a5
[l

=
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1. EERERITTHARZHE

ENXENTEES (BREETR

AB) 2M&mT -

Share-based

payment

performance

related

Retirement incentive

Performance benefit payments

related scheme  HERHR

Salaries and bonus contributions VR
Fees allowances ERRHH awEs BER Total
it HERAM ZTEAL HEHR RBAR ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTE AERTT ARRTT AERTR ABRRTT ARRTR
380 124 - 4 436 944
260 240 - - 962 1,462
140 63 - 2 962 1,167
97 - - - - 97
97 - - - - 97
97 - - - - 97
97 - - - - 97
1,168 427 - 6 2,360 3,961
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11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Salaries and

Fees allowances

ne  HeREH
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL  ARETR

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

1. EERERITHRARZHS

(#)

Share-based

payment

performance

related

Retirement incentive

Performance benefit payments

related scheme  EREIEH
bonus  contributions b\ 3

BEAIE SR RER Total

WAL R BB =i

RMB000  RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARBTL  ARETR  ARMTL  ARRTR

For the year ended BET-—-%1+2R
31 December 2011: St-HLEE:
Executive directors: yrES:
Xu Yejun BEE 380 124 7 4 850 1,365
Zhang Lanyin E i 260 265 7 - 1,486 2,018
Gu Aoxing BHT 140 64 7 4 1,486 1,701
Non-executive director: FIHMES
Gao Zhilong BEE 100 - - - - 100
Independent non-executive directors: By JEH{TES -
Yao Enshu B 100 - - - - 100
Yang Fugiang hE® 100 - - - - 100
Tsui Siu Hang, Steve "AE 100 - - - - 100
1,180 453 21 8 3,822 5,484

Mr. Xu Yejun is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Mr.
Xu also holds shares in the Company which give him
significant influence over the Group

The performance related bonus is determined by the
performance of individuals.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years.

REBERENRARBITHRAE R
EXHBER e BERIERITHR
BRBBTRGAEREZIME - fRT
ENFAEARRRNRD - WEIE
AEBABEAFED -

HRIBEBZIEALTIREBEBEARSE
B -

RzMmEFE  HEEFHELN
ERBME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the

Group, three (2011: three) were directors of the Company,

which include the Chief Executive, whose emoluments

are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The

emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two) individuals

were as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Performance related bonus
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme
Share-based payment performance
related incentive payments

e Kozfh
BRI AARE 2 TEAL

R ET IR

N 7Ty

ERIRAR

VARR A7) 73 B8 B2 B <1 5K

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Below HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

92 Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

1,000,000 T A T
1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 8 L&
2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 T
2,500,000/ 7T

12. ER#M&

AEBRLEBZRSH

ALTEFR =4

—B- % =%) AARAZE
¥ (BEIBARAR)  HMS
B E MBI B8R - T A%
—F——FWE) AtzBem

™

2012 2011
—F—-F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTFT
922 936
- 7
27 30
1,633 2,406
2,582 3,379

BEZHMENFATEHE :
2012 2011
—$-=% —T—F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EREAH BB AB
1 -
1 1




13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

Final dividend paid in respect

of the year ended 31 December 2011

of HK1 cent (year ended
31 December 2010: HK3.6 cents)

2

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

13 ﬂglh\
2012 2011
—Z2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
HEE=Z—F
+-—A=+—HIHFE
KR HANL B 1L
(Bz—Z2—ZF+—-A8
—t—HIFE:
3.67811) 9,840 35,207
BEEVEEZRNEEZE T ——F

No final dividend in respect of the year ended 31

December 2012 (2011:

final dividend of HK1 cents per

share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011)

has been proposed by the directors.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company for both

years.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company
for the purpose of calculation

of basic and diluted earnings per share

2
L5

7

BERERK
BERNMEARE
BEANEIEZFERF

TZA=+T—HLEFEZREEE
(ZE——F HE-_T—F+=
A=1+—RLFE 2 RERSFB
Al -

AR B R S R AE R A AR

B o
N

BERAET

RATEE AR FRER R Y
BRI TR T RIRE -

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
72,479 92,011
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted

earnings per share

RHE
Bt HSREARF
i PR 2 EBR I
B

14. BlREBF (&)

BEHEENERRCFE

R

Bhit S RBERT
PP 2 BB A0
Fim

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did not assume

the exercise of the Company’s options because the

exercise price of the share options was higher than the

average market price of the shares of the Company.

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERERAT

Number Number
of shares of shares
;278 4= | & EE
2012 2011
—E—F —F——%F
’000 000

TB& TFi%
1,200,000 1,200,000
- 100
1,200,000 1,200,100

REz—Z2——F+-_A=+—H
IHFE - HRARAIERIEZITE
BERARARMHZFEHTHE
% AL ESREERTIRTE
B AR A BRI T(E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% » BBERRIE
Furniture
and fixtures Plant,
and office  machinery
Leasehold  equipment and
Construction improvement %ER  equipment Motor
inprogress  Buildings g RER BE vehicles Total

ERIE BF  WREE WOZRR RERER RE it
RMBIOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETRT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

COST 7%

At 1 January 2011 RZE——E-F-H 8,913 19,789 159 1,008 38,126 7,747 75,802
Additions RE 7,170 302 - 154 66,366 324 78,316
Transfer Bz (16,083) 16,083 - - - - -
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-A=1-H - 36,174 159 1,222 103,492 8,071 149,118
Additions WNE - 524 - 46 258 9% 926
Disposal & - - - (M) - - ()
At 31 December 2012 W_8-Z&+-A=+-H - 36,698 159 1,197 103,750 8,169 149,973
DEPRECIATION it

At 1 January 2011 RZE——5-f—H - 3,520 14 637 13,011 1,084 18,266
Provided for the year EREE - 1134 87 208 4,683 1420 7532
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-f=1-H - 4,654 101 845 17,694 2,504 25,798
Provided for the year FREE - 1,808 58 20 9,327 1,362 12,635
Disposal e - - - (64) - - (64)
At 31 December 2012 W_8-Z%+-A=t+-H - 6,462 159 87 27,021 3,856 38,369
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2012 RZE--§+ZA=+-H - 30,236 - 326 76,729 4,313 111,604
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-f=1-A - 31,620 58 377 85,798 5,567 123,320
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For

the year ended 31 December 2012

Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment

except for construction in progress are depreciated on

a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and

after taking into account of their estimated residual value,

at the following rates per annum:

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

4.5% - 18%
20% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and
office equipment 18%
Plant, machinery and
equipment 9%

Motor vehicles 18%

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and are held

under medium term leases.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent leasehold

land in the PRC under medium term leases and are

amortised to consolidated statement of comprehensive

income over the lease term of 50 years from January

2006.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current asset
Current asset

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

BEmEME AT

FRBEE
MBEE

15.

MR EEEMm (&)

HitE - BB R&E (ER TR
1) B AUE RS E B EE RIER
BEEATIHERATREMGE A

ERFHFTENE
BF 4.5% — 18%
TAEMERE  20%5IRFHEE -
B E AL

FREREER

MAERE  18%
W5 - #aE Rk

B 9%
i 18%

BFLNRFEAN - RIEHHELD
A -

Rt L EERIR

AREBEBENEEFBELRHEL
REFHEOFSAEIHELL - 1
—EERF-AERH0FENEE
HNEGE2EKERTPH#H -

2012 2011
== —T—~&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARNT
9,862 10,097

235 235
10,097 10,332
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVENTORIES

Raw materials B R
Work-in-progress pank LA
Finished goods LIRK on

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit period granted by the Group to certain
customers is within 180 days (2011: 90 days), while other
customers are due immediately when goods are delivered.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the goods delivery date at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the respective
dates on which revenue was recognised:

0 - 30 days 0%&30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61%90H
91 - 120 days 91&120H
121 - 180 days 121E180H

At 31 December 2012, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB111,392,000 (2011: RMB107,086,000),
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

17. 8

2012 2011
—E2——5 —E——4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT AREEFIT
8,845 13,827
6,774 6,325
4,360 4,761
19,979 24,913

18. E SR FHIE

AEBRAETEEREZEESRA
180H (20114 : Q0H) LA » ME
fih & P AR IR B @ BN 3K o
LTARBRARBEERRZNH
H (B A S AR AR 27
2B 5 EWGRIERE AT

2012 2011
—E2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFTT
24,152 18,221
28,579 29,761
30,715 31,251
29,903 23,123
17,802 15,549
131,151 117,905

RZE——F+ZA=+—H8" &
EECBSRNFEEHRBEERE
wEABAREKE111,392,000T (=
——%F : AR#¥107,086,0007T) Z
FEUEIR - HRXBRRAIRE @B
REBWARELBREBEEE - &
5 B0 fE ok UL F A BRI A (T

-]
AR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:

0 — 30 days 0£30H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 - 120 days 91£&120H

121 - 180 days 121HZE180H

The Group has not provided for the trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired because the directors
of the Company consider that those receivables are
recoverable based on the good payment record of the
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at the end of the reporting period and
considers to make impairment losses for irrecoverable
amount, if necessary.

At 31 December 2012, included in the trade receivables
is RMB2,904,000 (2011: RMB1,184,000) and RMB64,000
(2011: nil) that was denominated in EUR and USD
respectively. All the remaining trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

18. WHBBRIA (&)

EAMERREZE S RKFIAL
BRERIAE ¢

2012 2011
8% —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
19,397 14,896
22,238 24,279
26,000 29,240
27,365 23,123
16,392 15,548
111,392 107,086

AEBETERCAMERBREE
P EYGRIBEL BE - IR AR
RAEERBEEPZRIFERLER
5% EMGRIA AT T U o £ E
W LU F T BT EIR S o

REETEZRERAEZ AT E#E
B AEEEZEAKIREESR
EREERFHRZE S EWFR
EEARZEMEL - I KK
B AR RENESE S EWFR
AEEE  ARFERFZELDT
AU Bl & R AE R BT IR A

R-_ZTE——F+=-_A=+—8 8
S EWGRIE B IE D B AR T R E T
sHEZ F B AR H2,904,0005T (=
T ——4%: AR #1,184,0007T)
M AR ®64,000T (ZF ——F -
)  HAFMB B ZBUFIEAAR
BeEHE o



19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BILLS RECEIVABLES

The aged analysis of bills receivable at the end of the
reporting period are analysed as follows:

Within 90 days 90H X
91 - 120 days 91E120E
121 - 180 days 121E180E

At 31 December 2012, the carrying value of bills
receivables include bills endorsed to suppliers on a
full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to
RMB16,844,000 (2011: RMB17,046,000). As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the bills receivables as assets
in the consolidated financial statements. The associated
trade payables secured over the bills endorsed to the
suppliers which were not yet due at the end of reporting
period are recognised as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

All the bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The maturity dates of endorsed bills were less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2012, bank balances carried interest
at an average interest rate of 0.41% (2011: 0.55%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2012, included in the bank balances and
cash is RMB630,000 (2011: RMB17,114,000) that was
denominated in HKD. All the remaining bank balances and
cash are denominated in RMB.

19.

20.

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

B R

REARAR - BUEERE ST
T

2012 2011
—E—%F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEF T

27,632 22,902
14,916 11,746
4,389 5,067
46,937 39,715

RZE——F+=-_A=+—08" &
WEENEAERIEEEEERA
ERHEESEZEMHRIER
B/ R IE A R #16,844,0007T (=
T——F: AR®17,046,0007T) °
ARAREEMREEBBZESER
ZEEMNERRRNBR  WAEER
BENGREVBRETERERE
BEMN28EABEREE - MHER
EEMEE (REBRARHARTE)
WEREBMABEE S ENRERES
WA R ERBRBEE -

PIA RN REHDAAREHE

BEERBRERRPREF2EHA
BPRKNEA -

SBITHREGERASR
RN-ZZT——F+=-A=+—8"

THBZFHFFEE0.41% (ZF
——% : 0.55%) °

RZE—Z—F+ZA=+—H " &
ARTEBRRASHSEARE
630,000t (ZZE ——F : AR ¥
17,114,00070) A B Lt E - FT A
BRTRITEBRERESAARBETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

21. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the goods receipt date at the end of
the reporting period.

0 — 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31E60H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 90H M

The credit period granted by the suppliers to the Group is
within 30 days.

At 31 December 2012, included in the trade payables was
RMB16,844,000 (2011: RMB17,046,000) secured over
bills receivables endorsed to suppliers that were not yet
due for payment.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables at the end of
the reporting period are denominated in RMB.

100 Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

21. BRHEMAREA

AT RE S RN FIAR B RARR
BWERERB 25 Z KRBT -

2012 2011
—g-=% —z——F&
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

10,617 7,463
5,686 3,151
2,776 3,119
3,458 7,274

22,537 21,007

HEARANEEE L ZEEHR30
BA -

RZE—ZF+=ZHA=+—8"
FABSENFRENSEY R
MEBEEISENRERER (MK
NERA) HERBFXREARE
16,844,000 (ZZE ——F : AR
#17,046,0007T) °

REBHYPR  EHERNREZER
BEAAREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23.

Other payables

Payables for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Accrued sales commission

Accrued professional fees

Accrued staff costs

Other tax payables

HoAth F& A 500

WEEME - BB &
R ISR

FEsTHERE
EFTEXEN
fEEH B TR
H At e R

At 31 December 2011, included in payables for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment was RMB500,000
relating to bills receivables endorsed to suppliers that were

not yet due for payment.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 January 2011
Credit for the year

At 31 December 2011
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2012

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

22. HfiFEfI AR EEH

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARET T
1,153 1,223
3,119 7,259
17,440 17,831
1,004 978
1,880 1,731
7,470 7,163
32,066 36,185

R-2——E+=A=+—8 K

BOWE BERR

BENKEAE

o BREAHREREERKER
BREMmMAABERD 2HRBARE

500,0007T °

23. RERMIEAR

R-ZZT——%—HA—H

F R

KR-_Z——F+_-A=+—H

FAXH

R-2——-#+-A=+—H

Undistributed
earnings

of the PRC
subsidiary
hEMBATEZ
KR REF
RMB’000
ARBTFT

10,937
(1,512)

9,425
4,295

13,720

Annual Report 2012 —Z—_FF3if

101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= b B TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BB&E
Number of
shares at
HK$0.10
per share
BE@mE
0.10#&TZ Amount
B8 E 4]
‘000 HK$’000
FhR FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2011, WZE——%—H—H8-
31 December 2011 and 2012 —E——FEN—E—_F
+-A=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: BT :
At 1 January 2011, RZE—%—HF—H-
31 December 2011 and 2012 —E——ERE——F
+=-—A=+—H 1,200,000 120,000
Shown in the consolidated FEMBREMT

financial statements
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 RA=-ZT——F—HF—H -
and 2012 T
—E-—H+-A=+—H

RMB’000 equivalent 104,201
ARBTREE

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 7 June
2010 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 6
June 2020. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 120,000,000, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 20 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from 1 year from the date
of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

25. LR SERFTRIH

RABRBER-_Z—TFALR
B RFERR AR B ([3
AElD XZEMERESKEAE
RIEBRMEER - Mm&t 8RN
Z_ZFEXNANBER - RIBEZXF
g ARAREZGARAERESR
(BRARALAENBRARNES)
RHBRE - ARBARRRD -

R-ZZE——FE+=-A=+—H 1§
BT EIE B m s RITE 2 BR
TR Iz 17 8B /120,000,000
B HMERARARRZAMBERT
R 010% « EARLEARRARERF
FHOEBRT - RIBZFTEREA
BEREMP R 2RO BETSEB
ARRRAMNEBEBEITRMDZ
10% ° FEARE AR AR B L BLE
BRT - FEEBIALRER—F
NERRIER ZBERERSRZ
EETEFTEIRNDEE - 5
R 8 ZN 1 B P AT B ) 2 B AT AR 4D
21% °

EREREATEANEL B
208 ASh &M R B ES (178
TC v ABE AN EE AR RE o B AR BE T IR
TERERSET —FEERLEA
Hestm AT E B LT AR
- TEEHARRESETE B
MERUTHmEE - () A2 RBRHR
BE BB ZKEE : (i)ARD ARG
REEFRLAHAIAAEERZF
B TE  Ki)A QR RDEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

H=E

25.

(continued)

—E——F+-_A=+—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Date of grant

RHiAM

22 November 2010
“EEET-ACtoA

22 November 2010
“E-FET-ACTCA

22 November 2010
I

27 September 2011
“3-—FRAZtLA

27 September 2011
ZE—ENACTR

27 September 2011
ZE—FNAZTLR

Exercisable at 31 December 2012

Vesting period
REN

22 November 2010
10 21 November 2011
“§-FEt-fIfIAE
ZF—Ft-Azt-A

22 November 2010
t0 21 November 2012
“E-SET-fIfZRE -
:f ZEt-AZT-R

22 November 2010
10 21 November 2013
A
s i

27 September 2011
10 26 September 2012
Z2——ENAZTEAEE
ZE-ZENMAZTRR

27 September 2011
t0 26 September 2013
ZE—FAAZTERE
“E-ZFNAZT/B

27 September 2011
t0 26 September 2014
ZE—ENAZTHREE
ZE-REAAZTAR

JR-F-—E+ A= T-RAR

Weighted average exercise price

METEAER

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERERAT

Exercisable period

nid

22 November 2011
t0 21 November 2020

P Ft-ActoRE
ZECRET-AZT-R

22 November 2012
to 21 November 2020
“E-—F+-f-+ZRE
:T7?¢+ A=t-R

22 November 2013
t0 21 November 2020
s T
ZECRET-AZT-H

27 September 2012
10 26 September 2021
—E_

“E-CERACTERE
ZE-FRAZTAA

27 September 2013
t0 26 September 2021
“5-ZEAR-TtRE
“5--FAA=T7A

27 September 2014
t0 26 September 2021
“E-RENAZTERE
:T:—inﬂ:+ﬁa

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Exercise
price

fifER

HK$1.408
14085 T

HKS1.408
14087

HK$1.408
1408570

HK$0.476
047677

HK$0.476
047657

HK$0.476
047657

25. LR SERFATRIH (K)

HE—E——F+-A=+—HILEE
Balance at Balance at
1.1.2012 Granted Exercised 31.12.2012
RZE-Z%& during during  WZB-Zf
-B-H the year theyear +ZBAZt+-A
&R FhEH FhiTE &
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
120,000,000 - - 120,000,000
54,000,000

HK$0.942 N/A N/A HK$0.942

0.94287 FER FER 094287




25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Date of grant
RiBH

22 November 2010
i

22 November 2010
“5-FF+-A-tZR

22 November 2010
B

27 September 2011
i el

27 September 2011
“E—EAACTLA

27 September 2011
ZE—EAACTER

Vesting period
FEH

22 November 2010
to 21 November 2011
“2-TE{-A-F2RE
“F—Ft-Azt-A

22 November 2010
to 21 November 2012
“2-FE+-f-tZB%:
FIEt-Ast-H

22 November 2010
to 21 November 2013
“2-FE+-A-f2RE
“3-ZFt-A1-8

27 September 2011
to 26 September 2012
ZE—FNAAZTERE
ZE-ZENAZTAR

27 September 2011
to 26 September 2013
ZB—FAACTHRE
ZE-ZERAZTRE

27 September 2011
t0 26 September 2014
I S =
“E-MENAZTAR

Exercisable at 31 December 2011
IRZE—E+Zf=+-BAF

Weighted average exercise price

IHEFTTEE

Exercisable period
B

22 November 2011
to 21 November 2020
P F-ACtoAE
Z2-FE4-A2+-H

22 November 2012
to 21 November 2020
2 g = -
ZE2-FET-A-1-H

22 November 2013
to 21 November 2020
PCEt-ACtIAE
Z2-FE+-A-+-R

27 September 2012
to 26 September 2021
ZE-ZENACTERE
e

27 September 2013
to 26 September 2021
ZT-CENACTERE
ZE-ERAZTAA

27 September 2014
t0 26 September 2021
ZE-PERAZTEAE
ZEC-FAACTAR

Exercise
price
%E

HK$1.408
140870

HK$1.408
140857

HKS1.408
140857

HKS0.476
047657

HKS0.476
047657t

HK$0.476
047637

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

25. LR SERFATRIH (K)

HE_ZT——HF+-A=1t—RLFE

Balance at Balance at
1.1.2011 Granted Exercised 31.12.2011
RZF——% during duing  RZE——F
-f-H2 the year theyer +-A=1-H
i ERRi Enfrfe bk 53
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
- 18,000,000 - 18,000,000

- 18,000,000 - 18,000,000

- 24,000,000 - 24,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000 - 120,000,000
18,000,000

HK$1.408 HK$0.476 N/A HK$0.942
1.408%T 047687 FER 094287
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILEE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

25. LR SERFATRIH (K)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no share
options were granted to the directors and employees of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 60,000,000
share options were granted to the directors and
employees of the Group. The estimated fair values of the
options granted on that date was RMB7,052,000.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

BHEe—_f2——F+-A=+—81t
FE VTEBEAAEBEESNEEBR
SRS AE o

BE-T——%+T-A=1+—HL
FE RNASEEEREERD
60,000,000 & % # - 7 % B8 IX
BERERBZHITRAFERARY
7,052,0007T °

AT ETEE-_BERERTE . [
ZIEXNEANEENAT

2011

—E——F

Closing share price at the date of grant R A B2 R Ik (E HK$0.433# 7T
Exercise price I8 HK$0.47678 7T
Expected volatility TR bR 63%
Expected life T8 B F B 10 yearsfF
Risk-free rate R R = 1.36%
Expected dividend yield BRI B = 8%

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Binomial model had been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options were
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varied with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

During the year, the Group recognised the total expense
of RMB12,245,000 (2011: RMB18,044,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

TBHRE I ERARBRN ZESL
MR EE - WA RPTER RS
FHEREBEEEEMIFERE - 17
FERHRITREBREZZEME
R A EtME LR -

A EE A= ERA R R
W7 DT o b B A MBS 4 P
TRERBRDEREE Y BER
B - AR BEMEET
THERZ TASRMRE -

FRN AEFERAQ2ARE Z
EREERFIABARE
12,245,000 (ZE——F : AR
#18,044,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

26. OPERATING LEASES 26. {EEHS
At 31 December 2012, the Group had commitment for RZE——F+_A=+—H &
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating FERBEIAHHELEHERUT
leases which fall due as follows: EBEN R 2 &WE - ERHBER

NN

2012 2011
—E——F —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Within one year —FR 795 449
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FRERF
(BIEEEMSE) 506 -
1,301 449
The commitments represent rentals payable by the Group ZEAEEASBEBERAEMFE
for its office in Hong Kong with a lease period of two EEMAERG2HE -
years.
Monthly rental was fixed and recognised over the terms of GAESDREERNEEREEE
the lease on a straight-line basis. ENMFER ©
27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. BEXKIE
2012 2011
—2—_-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Contracted for but not provided for in the 2 5] #){8 K7

consolidated financial statements RE B mER P EE
— Capital expenditure in respect of — BRAWERE X
acquisition of plant and machinery i T - W3 = 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
Hz—_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItFE

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

28.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management for both years was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme

Share-based payments

SRR
R ET B
PARSAD A EEHE 15 3R

The remuneration of directors and key executives is

determined by the remuneration committee having regard

to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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EELEMETBEEEKE N ME

FEZHNOT
2012 2011
=% —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T
3,105 3,181
64 55
6,998 10,962
10,167 14,198
BEENTETHAEB ZE T B
ZEEL2E[MARBETHEBEM

EEE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 29. EAFIZMEERH
COMPANY
(@) Financial information of the financial position of (@) A2 EIBBEARR B B 3 & B

the Company

2012 2011
—2——F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Non-current assets EREBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIZKE 174 174

Property, plant and equipment L E Y 15 19

Amount due from a subsidiary FEUR B 8 2~ R 5IR 229,977 226,535
230,166 226,728

Current asset MENEE

Bank balances RITHE R 429 16,930

Current liability mEAR

Other payables and accruals Hip et ezt & A (1,796) (1,679)

Net current (liabilities) assets wmE (BE) EERE (1,367) 15,251

Total assets less current liability SEHERTHAR 228,799 241,979

Capital and reserves HEEREHR

Share capital (see note 24) fEA (BfzE24) 104,201 104,201

Reserves s 124,598 137,778

Total equity k=38 228,799 241,979
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Movement of capital and reserve of the Company

29. FAFIZHMBRA (B)

(b) FDAFEXRRBEHEEE

Share
Share Share options Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
k% RiER TR MG RERH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F
—R-H 104,201 80,442 1,895 48,952 235,490
Profit for the year representing EREF BER
total comprehensive EARAEE)
income for the year - - - 23,652 23,652
Final dividend for year ended HE 234
31 December 2010 +ZA=t-Hit
ERIRERE - - - (35,207) (35,207)
Recognition of equity settled BARALEE
share-based payments IR BEBAH - - 18,044 - 18,044
At 31 December 2011 RIE——F
+-A=1-H 104,201 80,442 19,939 37,397 241,979
Loss for the year representing ERBHE BER
total comprehensive FEATEE)
expense for the year - - - (15,585) (15,585)
Final dividend for year ended HE 2%
31 December 2011 +ZR=+-Hit
ERCRERE - - - (9,840) (9,840)
Recognition of equity settled BARAEE
share-based payments IR BEREFH - - 12,245 - 12,245
At 31 December 2012 R-8-Z§
+ZA=+-A 104,201 80,442 32,184 11,972 208,799

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HItFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 30. EATFMELATEE

COMPANY
Equity Issued and
interest fully paid
Place and attributable share capital/
date of to the registered
incorporation/ Company capital
Name of subsidiary establishment EATIRES ERITRARE Principal activities
i) MNDE 2 g/ stk Ag BEES 2 <3} £3 TEEH
Sinoref (BVI) Limited The British Virgin Islands 100% us$2 Investment holding
12 January 2010 2k REBK
RBRIHS
“E-TF-A+ZAH
Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100% HK$1 Investment holding
EMRE (B%) BRAA 17 February 2010 187 REER
B
—E-TF_A++A
Sinoref Yixing? The PRC 100% RMB151,716,600 Manufacture and
B 20 July 2005 AE#151,716,6007T sale of advanced

F steel flow control
—ZERFEAZTH products
BEREESH
HKERE R

FTEMBARIBARRIMEEELEHE
A 1fESinoref (BVI) LimitedBl i A&
NEEEZEES -

All of the subsidiaries are indirectly wholly owned by the
Company except for Sinoref (BVI) Limited which is directly
wholly owned by the Company.

# Wholly foreign owned enterprise registered in the PRC. # RABEFER N EE R -
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Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities

RiE EEREEHE

Turnover

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Earnings per share
(RMB)
- Basic

- Diluted

Total assets
Less: Total liabilities

Total net assets

EEE

2NN 2PN
FREMNRFAR
FHERARE

SREF
(ARE)
- EA

-E%

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiZBRARAQE

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
FREEE+_A=+-HILEFEZER
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—TENFE ZTThF T-TF —T——F IZB—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET TET FET THT

67,206 156,896 318,762 323,421 322,671

24,971 70,076 130,066 92,011 72,479
0.03 0.08 0.12 0.08 0.06
NATNER  NATEA 0.12 0.08 0.06

Assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 December
FRER+T-AZ+—HAZRERAR
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENFE ZTThF T-TF —FT——F IZB-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
T TAT FET FTAT THT

103,820 189,505 530,547 622,476 694,552
(20,319) (35,928) (60,550) (77,631) (74,823)

83,501 153,577 469,997 544,845 619,729
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